
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 

 
HEATHER HUEBNER,         ) 
   Plaintiff,        )  
            ) No. 4:13-cv-23 
V.            ) 
            ) PLAINTIFF DEMANDS TRIAL 
KENNETH REISTROFFER,         ) BY JURY 
            ) 
and            ) 
            ) 
CITY OF CENTERVILLE, IOWA,        ) 
   Defendants.        ) 
 

COMPLAINT 
  
 INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 

 
1. This is a civil action seeking money damages against Kenneth Reistroffer and the City of 

Centerville, Iowa, for committing acts under color of law which deprived Plaintiff of 

rights secured under the Constitution and laws of the United States; and for refusing, 

failing, or neglecting to prevent such deprivations and denials to Plaintiff.   

2. Plaintiff alleges that Defendant Reistroffer falsely formulated a pretense of probable 

cause and fabricated and contrived facts to support false criminal charges, and swore to 

those facts as true, causing the arrest and prosecution of Plaintiff for crimes, all in 

violation of Plaintiff’s rights, including those secured and protected by the Fourth and 

Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. The City of Centerville, Iowa, 

is liable for Plaintiff’s damages because the City failed to train, instruct, supervise, 

control, and discipline officers, including Defendant Reistroffer. These failures, customs, 

practices, and usages constitute the official policy of the of the Centerville Police 

Department and caused the deprivation of Plaintiff’s rights. 
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JURISDICTION 

3. This action is brought pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1983 and §1988 and the Fourth and 

Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. The Court has jurisdiction 

under 42 U.S.C. §1983, 28 U.S.C. §1343 and 28 U.S.C. §1331.  

           PARTIES 

4. Plaintiff is a citizen of the United States and a resident of the State of Iowa, residing in 

Centerville, Iowa.  

5. At all times referred to herein, Defendant Reistroffer is a police officer for the City of 

Centerville, Iowa, and was acting in such capacity as an agent, servant, and employee of 

the Centerville Police Department. Defendant Reistroffer acted under the supervision, 

direction, and control of the Centerville Police Department, and pursuant to either the 

official policy, or the custom and practice of the Centerville Police Department.   

6. At all times referred to herein, Defendant Reistroffer acted under the color of law. 

7. Plaintiff sues Defendant Reistroffer in both his individual and official capacities. 

8. The City of Centerville, Iowa, is a government entity existing in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Iowa.  

9. The City is vested with exclusive management and control of its police officers, policies, 

and is responsible for insuring that members of the Police Department conduct 

themselves in a lawful manner in undertaking their duties. These duties also arise under 

the United States Constitution and are enforceable by suit pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1983.  

The duties include the duty to screen and scrutinize police officer candidates prior to 

hiring them, and to assure that its officers are properly and adequately trained, and 

supervised, controlled, and disciplined for their unconstitutional conduct. 
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FACTS 
 

10. On February 15, 2011, Plaintiff’s natural daughter K.H., was 12 years old and was taken 

into custody by Defendant Reistroffer.  

11. Plaintiff was contacted by Defendant Reistroffer and traveled to the Centerville Police 

Department with her husband, the father of K.H., Barry Huebner. 

12. Defendant Reistroffer told Plaintiff he believed K.H. was the victim of a sexual assault, 

handed Plaintiff a sexual assault evidence kit, and directed Plaintiff to the emergency 

room at Mercy Medical Center.   

13. The collection of evidence for a sexual assault kit is not without physical risk and 

requires invasive procedures that are not medically necessary and can cause pain, trauma, 

scarring, and infection. 

14. The collection of evidence for a sexual assault kit is not without emotional risk and can 

cause irreparable mental pain, mental trauma, consternation, depression, and 

embarrassment. 

15. K.H. denied at the time, and still denies, that she was the victim of any molestation, 

sexual assault, or sexual abuse. 

16. K.H. denied at the time, and still denies, that she is sexually active at all.  

17. Dr. Steven Goldman examined K.H. at the hospital.  

18. K.H. answered questions posed by Dr. Goldman and cooperated fully in a physical exam.  

19. Dr. Goldman’s examination revealed no indication of sexual abuse, trauma, or disease. 

20. Subsequent to the examination, Dr. Goldman consulted with Plaintiff and Mr. Huebner in 

deciding the necessary medical care required to treat K.H. 
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21. Plaintiff, Mr. Huebner, Dr. Goldman, and K.H., all agreed that the collection of evidence 

for the sexual assault kit was not medically necessary. 

22. Plaintiff and Mr. Huebner exercised their fundamental right parents to make decisions 

concerning the upbringing of their children and to determine the medical care of K.H. 

They collectively decided not to expose K.H. to the risks associated with the traumatic, 

invasive, and medically unnecessary procedures required to satisfy Defendant 

Reistroffer’s demand for evidence and the sexual assault evidence kit. 

23. On or about February 17, 2011, because Plaintiff exercise of her fundamental rights, 

Defendant Reistroffer, by way of criminal complaint and affidavit, caused a summons to 

issue charging Plaintiff with the felony crime of  Neglect or Abandonment of a 

Dependent Person, in violation of Iowa Code §726.3. Plaintiff was charged and a 

criminal warrant issued for her arrest. 

24. On or about February 17, 2011, because Plaintiff exercise of her fundamental rights, 

Defendant Reistroffer, by way of criminal complaint and affidavit, caused a summons to 

issue charging Plaintiff with the aggravated misdemeanor crime of Child Endangerment, 

in violation of Iowa Code §726.6(1a). Plaintiff was charged and a criminal warrant issued 

for her arrest. 

25. In his affidavit in support of the criminal complaint, Defendant Reistroffer falsely 

formulated a pretense of probable cause by fabricating and contriving facts in support of 

false charges, and then swore to those facts as being true, when he knew they were not.  

26. Absent the fabricated facts, no probable cause existed at the time, or since, to charge 

Plaintiff with the crimes alleged.  
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27. Plaintiff now suffers a permanent arrest record. Plaintiff was subjected to restrictions on 

her freedom and suffered supervision. 

28. Plaintiff required the assistance of counsel and incurred the expense and cost of 

defending herself against the fabricated criminal charges.   

29. On April 5th, 2011, the Honorable District Court Judge Richard E. Scott ordered 

dismissal of each charge, deciding the prosecution of the case should be terminated in the 

interest of justice.  

COUNT I 

VIOLATION OF THE FUNDAMENTAL RIGHT TO RAISE AND CARE FOR ONE’S 
CHILD IN VIOLATION OF THE SUBSTANTIVE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE OF THE 

FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT,  COGNIZABLE UNDER 42 U.S.C. §1983 
 

For her cause of action against Defendant Reistroffer in Count I, Plaintiff states: 

30. By this reference, Plaintiff incorporates each and every allegation and averment 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 29 of this Complaint as though fully set forth herein. 

31. Defendant Reistroffer intentionally and with deliberate indifference, falsely formulated a 

pretense of probable cause and fabricated and contrived facts to support the felony charge 

of Neglect or Abandonment of a Dependent Person, in violation of Iowa Code §726.3, 

and the aggravated misdemeanor crime of Child Endangerment, in violation of Iowa 

Code §726.6(1a), with the purpose of causing Plaintiff to be criminally prosecuted. 

32.  Defendant Reistroffer fabricated the criminal complaint and caused the prosecution of 

Plaintiff in retaliation for exercising her fundamental right to care for and raise her child, 

K.H. 

33. The criminal prosecution was dismissed by court order in the interest of justice on April 

5, 2012. 
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34. Defendant Reistroffer acted to punish and retaliate against Plaintiff for her refusal to 

require K.H.  to undergo invasive and unnecessary medical procedures which served no 

medical purpose.    

35. The fundamental right of a parent to the custody, care, and control of their dependent natural 

children – including decisions about the medical care the child requires - is perhaps the oldest 

of the fundamental liberty interests recognized by the Supreme Court. The right to raise a 

family includes the right to make medical decisions; to consult a physician without 

government interference or monitoring; and the right to consider and weigh the risks and 

harm to the child - both physical and emotional – in determining which medical 

procedures are medically necessary. Defendant Reistroffer interfered with Plaintiff’s right 

by punishing Plaintiff for exercising her familial liberty. 

36. Fabricating felony criminal charges to punish and retaliate against a parent for refusing to 

concede such fundamental rights to a government official acting without judicial 

authority, shocks the conscious.  

37. As a direct and proximate result, Plaintiff was unreasonably seized, criminally 

prosecuted, and suffered retaliation in violation of her rights under the Substantive Due 

Process Clause of the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendment to the United States 

Constitution, protected by 42 U.S.C. § 1983. 

38. As a direct and proximate result of the malicious, outrageous, and conscious shocking 

conduct of Defendant Reistroffer aforedescribed, Plaintiff suffered, and still suffers,  pain 

of the mind, apprehension, depression, and consternation.  Plaintiff has further suffered 

injury to her reputation and damages in the form of the costs and attorney fees required to 

defend against the fabricated charges. Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to suffer 
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special damages in the form of lost wages and benefits into the future in an amount which 

has yet be determined.    

39. The acts of Defendant as aforedescribed were conscious shocking, intentional, wanton, 

malicious, oppressive, reckless, and callously indifferent to the rights of Plaintiff, thus 

entitling Plaintiff to an award of punitive damages 

40. If Plaintiff prevails, she is entitled to an award of attorney fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 

§1988. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against Defendant Reistroffer for 

compensatory damages in an amount which is fair and reasonable, and for punitive damages, 

plus costs of this action, attorney’s fees, and such other relief as the Court deems fair and 

appropriate under the circumstances. 

COUNT II 
MALICIOUS PROSECUTION AND UNLAWFUL SEIZURE OF PLAINTIFF BY 

DEFENDANT REISTROFFER IN VIOLATION OF THE FOURTH AND 
FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS, COGNIZABLE UNDER 42 U.S.C. §1983 
 

For her cause of action against Defendant Reistroffer in Count II, Plaintiff states: 

41. By this reference, Plaintiff incorporates each and every allegation and averment 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 40 of this Complaint as though fully set forth herein. 

42. Defendant Reistroffer intentionally, and with deliberate indifference, falsely formulated a 

pretense of probable cause, and did fabricate and contrive facts to support the felony 

charge of Neglect or Abandonment of a Dependent Person, in violation of Iowa Code 

§726.3, and the aggravated misdemeanor crime of Child Endangerment, in violation of 

Iowa Code §726.6(1a) with the purpose of causing Plaintiff to be criminally prosecuted. 
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43.  Defendant Reistroffer fabricated said facts and swore to those facts in affidavits relied 

upon by the Iowa District Court in determining probable cause, including but not limited 

to: 

a. the assertion that the collection of evidence for a sexual assault kit is a 

medically necessary procedure; 

b. the assertion that Plaintiff refused to allow any medical examination of 

K.H. 

c. the allegation that Plaintiff urged others to “lie” to him (Defendant 

Reistroffer). 

44. Defendant Reistroffer knew the particular facts he presented to the Court were false at the 

time he swore to those facts and submitted his affidavit. Defendant therefore acted with 

deliberate indifference to Plaintiff’s rights when he presented such fabrications to the 

Court as fact.  

45. In the absence of the facts fabricated by Defendant Reistroffer, there is no reasonable 

ground or probable cause to believe any crime was committed. 

46. In the absence of the facts fabricated by Defendant Reistroffer, there is no reasonable 

ground or probable cause to believe Plaintiff perpetrated any crime. 

47. The criminal prosecution was dismissed in the interest of justice by court order on April 

5, 2011. 

48. As a direct and proximate result of the malicious, outrageous, and conscious shocking 

conduct of Defendant Reistroffer aforedescribed, Plaintiff suffered, and still suffers,  pain 

of the mind, apprehension, depression, and consternation.  Plaintiff has further suffered 

injury to her reputation and damages in the form of the costs and attorney fees required to 
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defend against the fabricated charges. Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to suffer 

special damages in the form of lost wages and benefits into the future in an amount which 

has yet be determined.   

49. The acts of Defendant as aforedescribed were intentional, wanton, malicious, oppressive, 

reckless and callously indifferent to the rights of Plaintiff, thus entitling Plaintiff to an 

award of punitive damages against the individually named Defendants. 

50. If Plaintiff prevails, she is entitled to an award of attorney fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 

§1988. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against Defendant Reistroffer for 

compensatory damages in an amount which is fair and reasonable, and for punitive damages, 

plus costs of this action, attorney’s fees and such other relief as the Court deems fair and 

appropriate under the circumstances. 

COUNT III 
FAILURE TO INSTRUCT, SUPERVISE, CONTROL AND DISCIPLINE 

AGAINST THE CITY OF CENTERVILLE, IOWA, 
COGNIZABLE UNDER 42 U.S.C. §1983 

For her cause of action against Defendant City of Centerville, Iowa in Count III, Plaintiff states: 

51. By this reference, Plaintiff incorporates each and every allegation and averment 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 50 of this Complaint as though fully set forth herein. 

52. There existed within the Centerville Police Department policies or customs, practices and 

usages, that are so pervasive that they constitute the policy of the Police Department, and 

which caused the constitutional deprivations of the Plaintiff, as has been more fully set 

forth herein.  

53. The policies, customs, practices and usages that exist include: 
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a. fabricating facts to support and cause the arrest, detention and prosecution 

of citizens in the absence of probable cause; 

b. issuing “cover” charges in retaliation against citizens who exercise their 

constitutional rights; 

c. unlawfully causing the arrest and detention of citizens; 

d. acting individually and conspiring with others to prevent the truth about 

the transgressions of other officers  from being known by lying in official 

reports, or otherwise, or by failing to report such transgressions.  This 

phenomenon is sometimes referred to as the code of silence; 

e. failing to adequately and properly receive citizen complaints, thereafter 

investigate, and thereafter discipline, re-train, or otherwise sanction and or 

remedy the transgressions of the officers of the Centerville Police 

Department;   

f. failing to adopt independent investigation and review of citizen 

complaints, relying instead on police officers employed by the Centerville 

Police Department when the City knows or should know that relying on 

officers of the Centerville Police Department to investigate allegations of 

misconduct against the police officers it employs is and has been 

ineffective at preventing and correcting misconduct and deviance. 

54. The City is vested with the duty and authority to train, supervise, discipline and otherwise 

control the officers of the Centerville Police Department.  

55.  As the lawfully designated policymaking body for the City Police Department, the City 

has the power and responsibility to prevent the existence of the policies and practices as 
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aforedescribed and has failed and refused to do so.  This failure to act in the face of 

constitutionally violative conduct as aforedescribed caused the constitutional deprivations 

suffered by Plaintiff.  

56. The Centerville Chief of Police is the commander of the police department and the 

highest ranking police officer in the department.  The Chief is delegated the power and 

authority to control to conduct of the officers of Centerville police department and failed 

and refused to properly train, to discipline, and otherwise control the conduct of the 

officers of the Police Department to prevent them from fabricating evidence and 

testimony. 

57. Had the City, or the Chief of Police, or both of them, affirmatively acted to properly train 

the officers of the Centerville Police Department, or to properly supervise the officers, or 

to discipline the officers when the officers conducted themselves in constitutionally 

violative ways, the constitutional deprivation of the Plaintiff would not have occurred. 

58. In their failures aforedescribed, the City and the Chief of Police intentionally disregarded 

known facts, or have been deliberately indifferent to facts that evidence constitutional 

deprivations. As such, they ratified the misconduct and the policies, customs and 

practices aforedescribed, and their culpability caused the constitutional violation of the 

Plaintiff. 

59. As a direct and proximate result of the policies, customs, practices and usages 

aforedescribed, Plaintiff suffered injury and damages when she was unreasonably seized, 

denied due process, and was criminally prosecuted in violation of her rights under the 

Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments, protected by 42 U.S.C. §1983. 
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60. As a direct and proximate result of the deliberately indifferent conduct of Defendant City 

as aforedescribed, Plaintiff has suffered pain of the mind as well as apprehension, 

depression and consternation.  Plaintiff has further suffered injury to her reputation and 

damages in the form of the costs and attorney fees in defense of the fabricated charges. 

Additionally, Plaintiff has suffered special damages in the form of lost wages and 

benefits into the future in an amount which has yet be determined.    

61. If Plaintiff prevails, she is entitled to an award of attorney fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 

§1988. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against Defendant City of Centerville for 

compensatory damages in an amount which is fair and reasonable, plus costs of this action, 

attorney’s fees and such other relief as the Court deems fair and appropriate under the 

circumstances. 

Respectfully submitted this 21st day of January, 2013. 

JOHN W. BRUZEK, PLC. 

By: /s/ John W. Bruzek  
     John W. Bruzek, AT0009651 IA 
     Box 3011 
     Iowa City, Iowa 52240 
     (319) 431-0698 
     E-Mail:  jwbplclaw@gmail.com 
     Attorney for Plaintiff. 

 
      M. VICTORIA COLE LAW FIRM, P.C. 
 
      By /s/M. Victoria Cole 
      M. Victoria Cole, AT0001678 IA 
      3200 37th Avenue SW 
      Cedar Rapids, IA 52404 
      Tel.: 319-261-2600 
      Fax: 319-390-1635 
      vcole@mchsi.com 
      Attorney for Plaintiff. 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA  

 

HEATHER HUEBNER,   )  NO. 4:13-cv-23 

  Plaintiff,   ) 

V.      )  

      ) 

KENNETH REISTROFFER,   )  APPEARANCE 

      ) 

And      ) 

      )    

CITY OF CENTERVILLE, IOWA,  )   

  Defendants.   ) 

 
 
COMES NOW attorney M. Victoria Cole of the M. Victoria Cole Law Firm, P.C., and hereby 
enters her appearance as counsel for Heather Huebner, Plaintiff in the above matter, and further 
requests notice of all hearings and copies of all pleadings, motions and other documents filed in 
this proceeding. 
 
      M. VICTORIA COLE LAW FIRM, P.C. 
 
 
      By _/s/__________________________________ 
      M. Victoria Cole  AT0001678 IA 
       Of 
      M. VICTORIA COLE LAW FIRM, P.C. 
      3200 37th Avenue SW, Suite 3 
      Cedar Rapids, IA 52404 
 
      Tel.: 319-261-2600 
      Fax: 319-390-1635 
      http://www.attyvictoriacole.com 
      victoria@attyvictoriacole.com  
 
      ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF 
Original: File 
Cc: Defendants 
 
 
 
 
 

PROOF OF SERVICE 
The undersigned certifies that January 29, 2013, the foregoing instrument was electronically 
filed with the Clerk of Court using the ECF system which will serve it on the appropriate 
parties. 
By: /s/___________________ 
     M. Victoria Cole 
     Attorney at Law 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 

CENTRAL DIVISION 

 

HEATHER HUEBNER, 

 

 Plaintiff, 

 

vs. 

 

KENNETH REISTROFFER AND CITY OF 

CENTERVILLE, IOWA, 

 

 Defendants. 

 

 

 

 

Case No.: 4:13-cv-23 

 

 

APPEARANCE AND JURY DEMAND ON 

BEHALF OF DEFENDANTS KENNETH 

REISTROFFER AND CITY OF 

CENTERVILLE, IOWA 

 

The undersigned hereby appear on behalf of the Defendants, Kenneth Reistroffer and 

City of Centerville, Iowa, in the above-captioned matter.  

JURY DEMAND 

 Defendants demand a jury trial on all issues in the case properly tried to a jury. 

  Respectfully submitted, 

 

HOPKINS & HUEBNER, P.C. 

 

 

By /s/ Barbara A. Hering_________________ 

BARBARA A HERING   AT 0003384 

bhering@hhlawpc.com 

 

 

By/s/Michelle R. Rodemyer_______________ 

MICHELLE R. RODEMYER   AT0009762 

2700 Grand Avenue, Suite 111 

Des Moines, IA  50312 

Telephone:  (515) 244-0111 

Fax:  (515) 244-8935 

mrodemyer@hhlawpc.com 

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS 

KENNETH REISTROFFER AND CITY 

OF CENTERVILLE, IOWA 
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Original filed. 

 

Copies to: 

 

John W. Bruzek 

Box 3011 

Iowa City, Iowa 52240 

(319) 431-0698 

E-mail: jwbplclaw@gmail.com 

 

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF 

 

 

M. Victoria Cole 

3200 37
th

 Avenue SW 

Cedar Rapids, IA 52404 

Tel: (319) 261-2600 

Fax: (319) 390-1635 

 

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

The undersigned certifies that the foregoing instrument was served 

upon each of the attorneys of record of all parties to the above-entitled 

cause herein at their respective addresses disclosed on the pleadings 

of record on the 30th day of January, 2013. 

By  ☐ U.S. Mail ☐ Fax 

 ☐ Hand Delivery ☒ Electronically through CM-ECF

 ☐ Private Carrier ☐ Other:    

Signature/s/ Karen I. Hunter  
 

 
S:\Bah\0947-0799\Pldg\Appearance.docx4360 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 

CENTRAL DIVISION 

 

HEATHER HUEBNER, 

 

 Plaintiff, 

 

vs. 

 

KENNETH REISTROFFER AND CITY OF 

CENTERVILLE, IOWA, 

 

 Defendants. 

 

 

 

 

Case No.: 4:13-cv-23 

 

 

ANSWER OF DEFENDANTS, KENNETH 

REISTROFFER AND CENTERVILLE, 

IOWA TO PLAINTIFF’S COMPLAINT 

 

COMPLAINT 

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 

1. Defendants admit Plaintiff seeks money damages under the theories described, but  

specifically deny committing any wrongful, illegal, or unconstitutional act of any type directed at 

the Plaintiff. 

2. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 2. 

3. Defendants admit the allegations in Paragraph 3. 

PARTIES 

4. Defendants admit Plaintiff is a citizen of the United States and a resident of the State 

of Iowa, but upon information and belief understand her to be a resident of Exline, Iowa. 

5. Defendants admit Defendant Reistroffer is a police officer for the City of Centerville 

and that he was acting in that capacity at the time of the incident involved in this case.  

Defendants further admit Defendant Reistroffer acted under the supervision, direction and 

control of the Centerville Police Department, but specifically deny that he engaged in any illegal, 
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unconstitutional, or improper activity that was the official policy, custom, or practice of the 

Centerville Police Department. 

6. Defendants admit the allegations in Paragraph 6. 

7. Defendants admit the allegations in Paragraph 7. 

8. Defendants admit the allegations in Paragraph 8. 

9. Defendants admit the allegations contained in Paragraph 9, but specifically deny that 

any illegal, unconstitutional, or improper conduct was engaged in by Defendant Reistroffer or 

any other member of the Centerville Police Department. 

FACTS 

10. Defendants admit the allegations of Paragraph 10, with the exception that K.H. was 

not taken into custody by Officer Reistroffer. 

11. Defendants admit Defendant Reistroffer attempted to make contact with Plaintiff and  

her husband by telephone, but was unsuccessful in doing so.  Defendant Reistroffer further states 

that he requested that an Appanoose County Sherriff’s Deputy contact the Plaintiff and her 

husband at their residents, which was done, and the Plaintiff and her husband traveled to the 

Centerville Police Department. 

12. Defendants admit the allegations stated in Paragraph 12 were a part of the discussion 

held with the Plaintiff and her husband at the Centerville Police Department. 

13. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 13. 

14. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 14. 

15. Defendants admit that K.H. has stated that all contact with the male juvenile on the  

night in question was consensual. 
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16. Defendants admit K.H. denied at the time that she was sexually active, but denies for 

lack of information her current statements with regard to her current sexual activity, if any. 

17. Defendants admit the allegations of Paragraph 17. 

18. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 18 for lack of information. 

19. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 19 for lack of information. 

20. Defendants admit the allegations of Paragraph 20. 

21. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 21 for lack of information. 

22. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 22 for lack of information. 

23. Defendants admit Plaintiff was charged with a violation of Iowa Code §726.3 and that  

a summons was issued and personally served on Plaintiff, which required her appearance in 

Court.  Defendants deny the remaining allegations of Paragraph 23, and specifically deny that a 

warrant was issued for Plaintiff. 

24. Defendants admit Plaintiff was charged with a violation of Iowa Code §726.6(1a) and 

that a summons was issued and personally served on Plaintiff, which required her appearance in 

Court.  Defendants deny the remaining allegations of Paragraph 24, and specifically deny that a 

warrant was issued for Plaintiff. 

25. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 25. 

26. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 26. 

27. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 27. 

28. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 28. 

29. Defendants admit the criminal charges against Plaintiff were dismissed. 
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COUNT I 

VIOLATION OF THE FUNDAMENTAL RIGHT TO RAISE AND CARE FOR ONE’S 

CHILD IN VIOLATION OF THE SUBSTANTIVE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE OF THE 

FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT, COGNIZABLE UNDER 42 U.S.C. §1983 

 

30. Defendants incorporate by reference their responses to Paragraphs 1 through 29 of the 

Complaint. 

31. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 31. 

32. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 32. 

33. Defendants admit that the charges against Plaintiff were dismissed. 

34. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 34. 

35. Defendants admit Plaintiff has the constitutional rights afforded to her under the 

United States Constitution.  Defendants specifically deny Defendant Reistroffer interfered with 

Plaintiff’s constitutional rights or engaged in any illegal, unconstitutional, or improper activity. 

36. Defendants make no response to the allegations of Paragraph 36 for the reason that 

they do not contain factual allegations against either Defendant.  Defendants further specifically 

deny they engaged in any illegal, unconstitutional, or improper conduct with regard to the 

Plaintiff. 

37. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 37. 

38. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 38. 

39. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 39. 

40. Defendants admit that if Plaintiff prevails in this action, she may be entitled to an  

award of attorney’s fees subject to the provisions of 42 U.S.C. §1988. 

WHEREFORE, Defendants pray that Plaintiff’s Complaint be dismissed with costs 

assessed to Plaintiff. 
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COUNT II 

MALICIOUS PROSECUTION AND UNLAWFUL SEIZURE OF PLAINTIFF BY 

DEFENDANT REISTROFFER IN VIOLATION OF THE FOURTH AND 

FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS, COGNIZABLE UNDER 42 U.S.C. §1983 

 

41. Defendants incorporate by reference their responses to Paragraphs 1 through 40 of the  

Complaint. 

42. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 42. 

43. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 43, including all subparts thereof. 

44. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 44. 

45. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 45. 

46. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 46. 

47. Defendants admit the charges against the Plaintiff were dismissed. 

48. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 48. 

49. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 49. 

50. Defendants admit that if Plaintiff prevails in this action, she may be entitled to an  

award of attorney’s fees subject to the provisions of 42 U.S.C. §1988. 

WHEREFORE, Defendants pray that Plaintiff’s Complaint be dismissed with costs 

assessed to Plaintiff. 

COUNT III 

FAILURE TO INSTRUCT, SUPERVISE, CONTROL AND DISCIPLINE 

AGAINST THE CITY OF CENTERVILLE, IOWA,  

COGNIZABLE UNDER 42 U.S.C. §1983 

 

51. Defendants incorporate by reference their responses to Paragraphs 1 through 50 of the 

Complaint. 

52. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 52. 

53. Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 53 including all subparagraphs therein. 
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54. Defendants admit the allegations of Paragraph 54 but specifically deny there was any 

failure to properly train, supervise, discipline, and otherwise control the officers of the 

Centerville Police Department. 

55. Defendants admit the City of Centerville has the power and responsibility to enact  

appropriate policies and practices for its police department.  The Defendants specifically deny 

the City has failed or refused to do so or acted in any way that was illegal, unconstitutional, or 

inappropriate with regard to the Plaintiff. 

56. Defendants admit the Chief of Police has the power and responsibility to enact  

appropriate policies and practices for its police department.  The Defendants specifically deny 

the Chief of Police has failed or refused to do so or acted in any way that was illegal, 

unconstitutional, or inappropriate with regard to the Plaintiff. 

57. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 57 to the extent they assert or suggest  

the City, the Centerville Police Department, or the Chief of Police for the Centerville Police 

Department acted illegally, unconstitutionally, or improperly with regard to the Plaintiff. 

58. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 58. 

59. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 59. 

60. Defendants deny the allegations of Paragraph 60. 

61. Defendants admit that if Plaintiff prevails in this action, she may be entitled to an  

award of attorney’s fees subject to the provisions of 42 U.S.C. §1988. 

WHEFORE, Defendants pray that Plaintiff’s Complaint be dismissed with costs 

assessed to Plaintiff. 
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AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES 

1. Any allegation not specifically admitted is denied. 

2. Defendant reserves the right to amend its Answer and these Affirmative defenses as  

discovery in the case proceeds. 

3. Defendants are entitled to qualified immunity. 

4. Defendants did not engage in any illegal, unconstitutional, or improper conduct with 

regard to the Plaintiff. 

5. The Plaintiff is not entitled to punitive damages against the City of Centerville, Iowa. 

6. The Plaintiff is not entitled to punitive damages against either Defendant for the 

reason that no conduct can be proven that satisfies the legal standard for punitive damages. 

7. The Plaintiff has failed to state a claim upon which relief may be granted. 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

HOPKINS & HUEBNER, P.C. 

 

 

By /s/ Barbara A. Hering_________________ 

BARBARA A HERING   AT 0003384 

bhering@hhlawpc.com 

 

 

By/s/Michelle R. Rodemyer_______________ 

MICHELLE R. RODEMYER   AT0009762 

2700 Grand Avenue, Suite 111 

Des Moines, IA  50312 

Telephone:  (515) 244-0111 

Fax:  (515) 244-8935 

mrodemyer@hhlawpc.com 

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS 

KENNETH REISTROFFER AND CITY 

OF CENTERVILLE, IOWA 
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Original filed. 

 

Copies to: 

 

John W. Bruzek 

Box 3011 

Iowa City, Iowa 52240 

(319) 431-0698 

E-mail: jwbplclaw@gmail.com 

 

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF 

 

 

M. Victoria Cole 

3200 37
th

 Avenue SW 

Cedar Rapids, IA 52404 

Tel: (319) 261-2600 

Fax: (319) 390-1635 

 

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

The undersigned certifies that the foregoing instrument was served 

upon each of the attorneys of record of all parties to the above-entitled 

cause herein at their respective addresses disclosed on the pleadings 

of record on the 15th day of February, 2013. 

By  ☐ U.S. Mail ☐ Fax 

 ☐ Hand Delivery ☒ Electronically through CM-ECF

 ☐ Private Carrier ☐ Other:    

Signature /s/Karen Hunter 
 

 
S:\Bah\0947-0799\Pldg\Answer.docx4360 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 

CENTRAL DIVISION 
 
HEATHER HEUBNER , : File No (s). 4:13-cv-23 

Plaintiff, :  
 : 

Vs.       : 
       :  SCHEDULING ORDER AND 
CENTERVILLE, IOWA, et al. , :  DISCOVERY PLAN 

Defendant ,  :  
       :   
       :  
  
 
 Counsel have conferred and submit the following case information and proposed dates for case 
management:  
 
1. Did the parties enter into an agreement at the Rule 26(f) conference resolving all issues relating to initial 

disclosures?  X  yes       no.  If you answer “no,” state whether any party objected at the Rule 26(f) 
conference to making or to the timing of the initial disclosures:       yes       no. 

If any party objected at the Rule 26(f) conference to making or to the timing of the initial 
disclosures, then the objecting party must, within 10 days after this order and plan has been 
filed, serve and file a document in which the objections are set forth with particularity.  If the 
parties have agreed to a deadline for making the initial disclosures, state the date by which the initial 
disclosures will be made:  March 8, 2013  

2. Deadline for motions to add parties:  April 29, 2013  
3. Deadline for motions to amend pleadings:  April 29, 2013  
4.  Expert witnesses disclosed by   a) Plaintiff:   May 29, 2013     
      b) Defendant: July 28, 2013 
      c) Plaintiff Rebuttal:  August 28, 2013 
5.  Deadline for completion of discovery:  October 28, 2013 
6.  Dispositive motions deadline (at least 120 days before Trial Ready Date): November 29, 2013 
7.  Trial Ready Date (at least 120 days after Dispositive Motions Date): March 28, 2014 
8.  Has a jury demand been filed? X Yes       No 
9.  Estimated length of trial:  3 days 
10. Settlement conference (choose one of the following): (a)       A court-sponsored settlement conference  
     should be set by the court at this time for a date after:      ; or (b) X  A court-sponsored settlement  
     conference is not necessary at this time. 
11. Should the court order a court-sponsored scheduling and planning conference pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P.  
     16(b) and 26(f)?       Yes  X  No  
12. Do the parties unanimously consent to trial, disposition and judgment by a U.S. Magistrate Judge, with  
     appeal to the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 636(c)(3)?        Yes  X  No 
 
 
/s/: John W. Bruzek AT0009651   /s/ Barbara A.Hering AT0003384 
ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF(S)       ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT(S) 
Box 3011       2700 Grand Avenue, Suite 111 
Iowa City, IA.52240    Des Moines, IA 50312 
319-431-0698     515-244-8935 
jwbplclaw@gmail.com   bhering@hhlawpc.com 
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JUDGE’S REVISIONS 
 
The deadline in Paragraph ______ is changed to ___________________________. 
 
The deadline in Paragraph ______ is changed to ___________________________. 
 
The deadline in Paragraph ______ is changed to ___________________________. 
 
 IT IS ORDERED that this proposed Scheduling Order and Discovery Plan _____ is _____ is not 
approved and adopted by this court. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a scheduling and planning conference: 
 
 _____ will not be scheduled at this time. 
 
 _____ will be held in the chambers of Judge ______________________ at the U.S. Courthouse in 
_______________________, Iowa, on the _____ day of ____________________, at ________ o’clock __.M. 
 
 _____ will be held by telephone conference, initiated by the court, on the _____ day of 
____________________, at ___________ o’clock __.M. 
 
 DATED this ______ day of _________________________________. 
 
 
 

  
MAGISTRATE JUDGE 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

 
ORDER OF REFERENCE 

 
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that this case is referred to a U.S. Magistrate Judge for the conduct of all 

further proceedings and the entry of judgment in accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 636(c) and the consent of the 
parties. 

 
DATED this ______ day of _________________________________. 

 
 
 

  
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 

 
S:\HJC\Forms\Federal Court\FederalCt-SchedulingOrder.doc4314 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

IN AND FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 


CENTRAL DIVISION 


HEATHER HEUBNER, 	 ) CIVIL NO. 4:13-CV-00023-JAJ-TJS 
) 


Plaintiff, ) 

) 


vs. 	 ) TRIAL AND SCHEDULING ORDER 
) 

KENNETH REISTROFFER, et al., ) 
) 

Defendants. ) 
) 

The Court conducted a Trial and Scheduling Conference pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 

16 at the United States Courthouse, Des Moines, Iowa on March 14, 2013. John W. Bruzek 

appeared on behalf of plaintiff. Barbara A. Hering appeared on behalf of defendants. 

The Court enters the following Trial and Scheduling Order: 

1. 	 Jury trial will begin at 9:00 a.m. on July 21, 2014, before United States 
District Judge John A. Jarvey, at the United States Courthouse, Des Moines, 
Iowa. The parties estimate trial will take no more than three days. 

2. 	 Final pretrial conference will be held at the United States Courthouse, Des 
Moines, Iowa, at 10:30 a.m. on July 10,2014. All motions in limine shall 
be filed no less than 21 days prior to the date of the final pretrial conference. 
All motions pursuant to Fed. R. Evid. 104 shall be filed no less than 30 days 
prior to the date of the final pretrial conference. 

3. 	 The parties have exchanged initial disclosures. 

4. 	 The Court is advised that there will be no additional parties named in 
this litigation. 

5. 	 All motions for leave to amend pleadings shall be filed on or before October 
15,2013. 

6. 	 Expert witnesses: 
a. 	 Plaintiff shall designate expert witnesses, and disclose their written 

reports, by July 1,2013; 
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b. 	 Defendants shall designate expert witnesses, and disclose their written 
reports, by September 1,2013; 

c. 	 Plaintiff shall designate rebuttal expert witnesses, and disclose their 
written reports, by October 1, 2013. 

7. 	 Discovery shall be concluded, and not propounded, by February 15,2014. 

8. 	 Dispositive motions shall be filed on or before March 15,2014. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 


DATED this 19th day of March, 2013. 
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ORDER RE: FINAL PRETRIAL CONFERENCE 


Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 16 and Local Rules 16(b) and (d), IT IS ORDERED that the following 
requirements for the final pretrial conference shall be met: 

1. 	 Counsel shall appear before a United States Magistrate Judge at the time and place noted 
in the attached order, fully prepared to conduct the pretrial conference. No continuance 
ofthe trial date will be granted unless the request is made within fourteen days from the 
date ofthis order, andfor good cause shown. 

2. 	 The judge assigned to conduct the final pretrial conference is available to schedule a 
settlement conference. The parties will be required to be personally present at settlement 
conferences. Counsel shall confer, and contact the office ofthe undersigned, ifthey wish 
to schedule a settlement conference. The parties are reminded that private mediation 
services also are commercially available, if a court-sponsored settlement conference is 
not appropriate for this case. 

3. 	 Counsel shall confer to prepare the Final Pretrial Conference Order, in accordance 
with the attached form. At the final pretrial conference, an original and one copy shall 
be submitted to the judge. It is the responsibility of plaintiff's counsel to prepare and 
present this order. Separate proposals from each party will not be accepted. Appropriate 
sanctions will be imposed pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 16(f) for failure to comply with 
these requirements. 

4. 	 Before the final pretrial conference, motions in limine must be filed and served on 
opposing counsel, so that they may be addressed at the conference. 

5. 	 By the time ofthe final pretrial conftrence, the parties shall have filed: 
a) Trial briefs; 
b) Proposed voir dire questions; 
c) Complete jury instructions, including verdict forms (counsel 

may confer and submit one j oint set of unopposed instructions/ 
verdict forms and individually submit the contested jury 
instructions/verdict forms); and 

d) A stipulated statement ofthe case to be read during jury selection. 

-3
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FORM OF ORDER FOR FINAL PRETRIAL CONFERENCE 

[NOTE: CAPTION OF ACTION HAS BEEN OMITTED] 

A final pretrial conference was held in the above matter pursuant to 
Fed. R. Civ. P. 16 on ____________ 

The following counsel, who will try the case, appeared at the conference: 

1. 	 For the plaintiff: 
Name(s) 
Street number and name 
City, State and zip code 
Phone number 

2. 	 For the defendant: 
Name(s) 
Street number and name 
City, State and zipcode 
Phone number 

Accordingly, 

IT IS ORDERED 

1. 	 The parties agree that the following facts are true and undisputed: 

A. 
S. 

[NOTE: the parties should set out in full all material facts to which there is no dispute. Special 
considerations should be given to such things, where relevant, as life and work expectancy, medical 
and hospital bills, funeral expenses, cause of death, lost wages, and property damage. Parties shall 
stipulate any undisputed fact even if the legal relevance ofthe stipulated fact is questioned by one 
or more parties. In such instances, the stipulated fact should be followed by an identification of the 
objecting party and the objection (i.e., "Plaintiff objects to relevance.")] 

-4
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II. 	 EXHIBITS 

A. 	 The parties agree that the following exhibits shall be considered to be already in 
evidence at the trial without further offer, proof or objection. Specifically, the parties 
agree that both plaintiffs and defendant's exhibits listed under this portion (Paragraph 
IIA) of the final pretrial order are in evidence at the commencement of the trial and 
available for use by any party at any stage of the trial. 

1. 	 Plaintiffs Exhibits: 

1. 	 [Describe exhibit] 
2. 	 [Describe exhibit] 
3. 	 [Describe exhibit] 

2. Defendant's Exhibits 

A. 	 [Describe exhibit] 
B. 	 [Describe exhibit] 
C. 	 [Describe exhibit] 

B. 	 Parties want to introduce into evidence the following exhibits to which all foundation, 
identification, and authenticity objections are waived but to which an opposing party 
objects on the grounds noted. It is further agreed that any exhibit listed in this 
paragraph may be used by any other party provided that party establishes that the 
exhibit is otherwise admissible. 

1. 	 Plaintiffs Exhibits: 

4. 	 [Describe the exhibit, state the purpose for which it is offered, and the 
objection thereto.] 

5. 	 [Describe the exhibit, state the purpose for which it is offered, and'the 
objection thereto.] 

6. 	 [Describe the exhibit, state the purpose for which it is offered, and the 
objection thereto.] 

2. 	 Defendant's Exhibits: 

D. 	 [Describe the exhibit, state the purpose for which it is offered, and the 
objection thereto.] 

E. 	 [Describe the exhibit, state the purpose for which it is offered, and the 
objection thereto.] 

-5 

Case 4:13-cv-00023-JAJ-TJS   Document 9   Filed 03/20/13   Page 5 of 8



[Describe the exhibit, state the purpose for which it is offered, and the 
objection thereto.] 

C. 	 Parties want to introduce into evidence the following exhibits to which an opposing 
party will object on the grounds noted. It is further agreed that any exhibit provided 
that party establishes the exhibit is otherwise admissible. 

7. 	 [Describe the exhibit, state the purpose for which it is offered, and the 
objection thereto.] 

8. 	 [Describe the exhibit, state the purpose for which it is offered, and the 
objection thereto.] 

9. 	 [Describe the exhibit, state the purpose for which it is offered, and the 
objection thereto.] 

2. 	 Defendant's Exhibits: 

G. 	 [Describe the exhibit, state the purpose for which it is offered, and the 
objection thereto.] 

H. 	 [Describe the exhibit, state the purpose for which it is offered, and the 
objection thereto.] 

I. 	 [Describe the exhibit, state the purpose for which it is offered, and the 
objection thereto.] 

[NOTE: 	 Any exhibits not properly listed in the Order will be subject to exclusion at trial and any 
objection not indicated will be deemed waived unless this Order is modified prior to 
trial to prevent manifest injustice. All exhibits shall be made available to opposing 
counsel for inspection sufficiently prior to the FPTC to permit objections to be noted 
in this Order. Failure to provide exhibits for inspection shall constitute a valid ground 
for objection trial and should be noted in this Order.] 

III. 	 WITNESSES 

A. Plaintiff's Witnesses: [List witnesses, addresses and substance of testimony.] 

1. 
2. 

B. Defendant's Witnesses: [List witnesses, addresses and substance of testimony.] 

1. 
2. 

6

Case 4:13-cv-00023-JAJ-TJS   Document 9   Filed 03/20/13   Page 6 of 8



C. 	 A party listing a witness guarantees hislher presence at trial unless the Court and 
opposing counsel are notified to the contrary at least seven (7) days prior to trial. 
All parties are free to call any witness listed by the opposing party whether they 
have listed them or not. 

D. 	 A witness testifying by deposition must be listed with a designation that the 
testimony will be by deposition. 

IV. F ACTU AL ISSUES 

A. 	 Plaintiff's Factual Issues: 

l. 
2. 

B. 	 Defendant's Factual Issues: 

l. 
2. 

[NOTE: Each party should list all views of the major disputes which are involved in the 
case.] 

V. LEGAL CONTENTIONS 

A. 	 Plaintiff's Legal Contentions: 

l. 
2. 

B. 	 Defendant's Legal Contentions: 

1. 
2. 

[NOTE: Each party should set forth all theories of recovery or defense, including 
specifications of fault which will be raised upon at trial. The elements of each 
theory of recovery and the elements of damages sought must be included.] 

VI. LEGAL ISSUES 

A. 	 Plaintiff's Legal Issues: 

-7
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1. 
2. 

B. Defendant's Legal Issues: 

1. 
2. 

[NOTE: The parties should set forth any legal questions which are likely to arise 
at trial. This should include such things as: 

A legal dispute as to the elements of plaintiff s cause of action or whether recovery 
is barred as a matter of law by a particular defense. 


Whether, as a matter of law, a particular defense would apply. 


Any legal dispute as to the measure, elements, or recovery of damage claimed by 

the plaintiff. 


Any unusual evidentiary questions which are likely to arise at trial. 


Whether the statute of frauds or the parol evidence rule will be raised, etc.] 


PAGE NUMBERS SHALL BE CENTERED AT THE BOTTOM OF EACH 
PAGE OF THE PROPOSED ORDER 

-8
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
IN AND FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA

CENTRAL DIVISION

HEATHER HEUBNER,

Plaintiff,

vs.

KENNETH REISTROFFER, et al.,

Defendants.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

CIVIL NO.  4:13-CV-00023-JAJ-TJS

ORDER

With regard to issues involving electronically stored information (ESI), the parties

are directed to meet and confer, and to file a joint status report regarding matters set forth below:

1. The estimated number of custodians of electronically stored information who
will be the subject of orders of retention, and orders for search for
information.

2. Identification of relevant and discoverable ESI, including all methods agreed
upon by the parties for identifying any initial subset sources of ESI which are
most likely to contain relevant and discoverable information, as well as
methodologies agreed upon for retrieving the relevant and discoverable ESI
from the initial subset.

3. The agreed time frame for all searches of computers maintained by any and
all parties.

4. The agreed format for any computerized searches.

5. The agreed search terms to be utilized in any computerized search.

6. Whether the existence of, and retention of, ESI has been identified in the
initial disclosures exchanged, or to be exchanged by the parties.

7. The implementation and existence of litigation holds on electronically
stored information by all parties.

8. The existence, location and availability of information stored, 
maintained and collected in any “cloud” computing facilities or
programs.
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If the parties are unable to agree upon an appropriate protocol for the search of, and

review of, electronically stored information in this case, they are to notify the Court within ten days

of any meet and confer session regarding such failure, and the Court will then order a scheduling

conference to discuss these issues.

The parties shall submit the joint status report within ten days of the meet and confer

session, and in no event no later than April 8, 2013. 

IT IS SO ORDERED.

DATED this 19th day of March, 2013.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 
 

HEATHER HUEBNER,    )  
Plaintiff,  ) 

)   
V.       ) 

)    No. 4:13-cv-23 
KENNETH REISTROFFER, et al.   )  

)  
Defendants.     ) 

 
 

JOINT STATUS REPORT ON ELECTRONICALLY STORED INFORMATION 
 
 

COMES NOW Plaintiff and Defendant jointly, and pursuant to the Order of this 

Honorable Court in Doc. 10 to report on the status of electronically stored information in 

this matter.  

1. The parties have exchanged initial disclosures, which includes hardcopies of 

discoverable electronically stored information. The parties are unaware of the existence of 

additional electronically stored information at this time.   

2. Should the parties become aware of electronically stored information over the 

course of discovery; the parties will supplement this status report. 

 

 Respectfully submitted this 8th day of April, 2013. 

JOHN W. BRUZEK, PLC. 
 

By:  /s/ John W. Bruzek   
John W. Bruzek, AT0009651 IA 
P.O. Box 3011 
Iowa City, Iowa 52240 
319-431-0698 
E-Mail:  jwbplclaw@gmail.com 
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2  

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 
      and 
 

            M. VICTORIA COLE LAW FIRM, P.C.  
      
     By:  /s/ M. Victoria Cole  

M. Victoria Cole, AT0001678 IA  
3200 37th Avenue SW  
Cedar Rapids, IA 52404  
Tel.: 319-261-2600  
Fax: 319-390-1635  
vcole@mchsi.com  
Attorney for Plaintiff. 
 

      and 
 
 
HOPKINS & HUEBNER, P.C. 
 

     By: /s/ Barbara A. Hearing  
Barbara A. Hering, AT 0003384  
2700 Grand Avenue, Suite 111 
Des Moines, IA 50312 
Telephone: (515) 244-0111 
bhering@hhlawpc.com 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies that a true and accurate copy of the foregoing was provided 
to each attorney of record via the clerks CM/ECF system this 8th day of April, 2013.   

 
 
 

/s/ John W. Bruzek 
By: John W. Bruzek 
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EXHIBIT A 
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 

CENTRAL DIVISION 

 

HEATHER HUEBNER, 

 

 Plaintiff, 

 

vs. 

 

KENNETH REISTROFFER AND CITY OF 

CENTERVILLE, IOWA, 

 

 Defendants. 

 

 

 

 

Case No.: 4:13-cv-23 

 

 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER 

 

 

 

COME NOW, the parties in this action, by and through their undersigned counsel, and 

respectfully state and stipulate as follows: 

WHEREAS, adequate discovery in the above-captioned matter may require the 

disclosure of certain confidential information and; 

WHEREAS, the parties are willing to provide access to certain confidential information 

subject to the protections contained in this Order; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS STIPULATED TO AND ORDERED THIS _____ DAY OF 

_________, 2013: 

1. This   Protective Order   shall   govern all   information, answers, documents, 

testimony, and other discovery information or items produced by the parties and designated as 

“confidential material” in conformance with this agreement. 

2. Nothing in this Protective Order shall require a party to produce any document or 

tangible item not otherwise discoverable. 

3. Nothing in this Protective Order shall allow a party to withhold material that is 

otherwise discoverable because of the designation as “confidential material.” 
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4. Whenever, in the opinion of any party to this litigation, information, answers, 

documents, testimony, or other discovery information or items (hereinafter collectively referred 

to as “materials”) would reveal information that such party (hereinafter “designating party”) 

considers to be confidential, the designating party shall have the right to designate such materials 

as “confidential material.”  The party to whom such confidential material is disclosed, including 

the party’s agents, representatives, and all other persons acting on the party’s behalf (hereinafter 

collectively referred to as “receiving party”) shall maintain the confidential material subject to 

the terms of this Protective Order. 

5. Designation of materials as confidential material shall be made by marking each 

page of a document, or the items itself (it not a document), with the word “Confidential.” 

6. The receiving party shall not disclose confidential material or information 

contained therein or derived therefrom to any person or entity except: 

a. A party and counsel who have appeared of record for a party in this case and 

employees of such counsel; 

 

b. Officers or employees of any party in this case who are assisting counsel in the 

prosecution or defense of this case; 

 

c. The Court and its officers (including court reporters); 

 

d. Experts, including investigators, engaged by attorneys for parties in this litigation 

to assist in this litigation, provided that these expert witnesses or investigators 

expressly agree to be bound by the terms of this Protective Order and not to 

disclose confidential material except as permitted in this Protective Order; 

 

e. Fact witnesses providing testimony by deposition or at any court proceeding in 

this case, except that such a person may only be shown confidential material 

during his/her testimony and in preparation therefor, and only to the extent 

necessary for such preparation or testimony; and, 

 

f. Any individual or entity that has independent access to the confidential material 

or who produced the confidential material. 
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7. Confidential material and the information contained therein or derived therefrom may 

be disclosed to the persons or entities identified in Paragraph 5 only under the following terms 

and conditions: 

a. Confidential material shall be used solely in connection with this litigation; 

b. Prior to disclosure of confidential material to any person, the attorney making the 

disclosure shall advise that person that, pursuant to this Protective Order, he/she 

may not divulge the confidential material or information contained therein or 

derived therefrom to any other person or entity; 

 

c. Such person shall sign a written Confidentiality Agreement, in the form attached 

hereto as Appendix A; 

 

d. Each original, executed Confidentiality Agreement shall be maintained in the files 

of the receiving party and shall be available for review by all counsel and parties 

upon reasonable notice; and, 

 

e. The provisions of (c) and (d) of this Paragraph shall not apply to those persons 

listed in Paragraph 5 (a), (b), (c), and (f) above. 

 

8. The provisions of this Protective Order shall not apply to a designating party’s own 

use of his, her, or its confidential material. 

9. Testimony elicited during a deposition that concerns any confidential material or 

information contained therein or derived therefrom shall be identified as “Confidential” under 

the terms of this Order by counsel for either party, either on the record of the deposition or by 

written notice to counsel for all parties no later than thirty (10) days after counsels’ receipt of the 

deposition transcript.  Until the expiration of the aforementioned ten-day period, all deposition 

transcripts and the information contained therein shall be deemed confidential in their entirety. 

After the expiration of the aforementioned ten-day period, only those portions of a deposition 

transcript marked “Confidential” shall be so treated. 

10. A party may object to the propriety of designating materials as “confidential material” 

by serving a written objection upon the designating party’s counsel.  If the non-designating party 
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objects in accordance with this Protective Order, and the designating party fails to agree within 

ten (10) days of its receipt of the objection to cancel or modify the designation in accordance 

with the objection, then the objecting party may move the Court for an order to declare such 

materials not confidential or modify the Protective Order regarding the disclosure of such 

materials. In connection with such a motion, the designating party shall bear the burden to show 

that the materials are entitled to continued protection under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 

and applicable case law. During the pendency of such dispute or motion and until the Court may 

rule otherwise, the materials designated as confidential material shall remain subject to the 

conditions and restrictions of this Protective Order. 

11. Nothing in this Protective Order shall preclude the parties from objecting to the 

admissibility or use of confidential material.  

12. If confidential material or information contained therein or derived therefrom is 

electronically filed with the Court, such material or information shall be filed as sealed 

documents through the Court’s CM/ECF system and under the rules governing the Court’s 

CM/ECF system. If filed with the Court as a paper document, any document designated as being 

confidential shall be delivered to the Clerk of Court in a sealed envelope on which shall be 

endorsed the caption of the case and the notation “FILED UNDER SEAL PURSUANT TO 

PROTECTIVE ORDER.” 

13. The use of confidential material at any court proceeding herein, including 

depositions, shall not result in such confidential material losing its confidential status through 

such use.  

14. This Protective Order shall be without prejudice to the right of any party to oppose 

disclosure of any materials for any reason other than confidentiality. 
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15. This Protective Order shall be without prejudice to the right of any party to seek relief 

from any of its provisions or to seek different or additional protection for any particular 

materials. 

16. Any party to this litigation, if it has cause to believe that a violation of this Protective 

Order has occurred or is about to occur, has the right to petition the Court for appropriate relief. 

17. Nothing in this Protective Order shall be deemed to waive any applicable privilege, 

and neither the taking of action nor the failure to take any action with respect to designating 

confidentiality pursuant to this Protective Order shall constitute a waiver of any rights, claims, or 

defenses by any party in this litigation or any other action. 

18. Upon conclusion of this litigation, all confidential documents and copies thereof in 

the possession, custody or control of the parties or their counsel shall be either returned to the 

party producing the same or destroyed.  All notes, memoranda, summaries or other documents in 

the possession, custody or control of the parties referring to, describing, or relating to 

confidential documents produced by the other party shall be destroyed, except that counsel to 

each party may retain one copy of all documents marked as confidential and may retain one copy 

of the pleadings, transcripts, exhibits, notes, memoranda, and correspondence, even if such 

documents constitute or contain confidential information.  Such material retained by counsel 

shall continue to be subject to the terms and conditions of this Stipulation and Protective Order. 

19. This Protective Order shall be binding upon the parties hereto from the date of 

execution, notwithstanding the date of entry of this Order by the Court. 

20. This Protective Order shall not be amended, modified, or terminated without prior 

written approval of all counsel or order of the Court. 
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STIPULATED TO BY: 

 

JOHN W. BRUZEK, PLC   M. VICTORIA COLE LAW FIRM, P.C 

 

By /s/ John W. Bruzek    _________________ By /s/ M. Victoria Cole   _____________ 

      John W. Bruzek   AT0009651   M. Victoria Cole  AT0001678 

      P.O. Box 3011 3200 37th Avenue, S.W. 

      Iowa City, Iowa 52240            Cedar Rapid, IA 52404 

      (319) 431-0698        Tel.: 319-261-2600 

      e-mail: jwbplclaw@gmail.com           Fax.: 319-390-1635 

 ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF         e-mail: vcole@mchsi.com 

                 ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF 

 

HOPKINS & HUEBNER, P.C. 

 

 

By /s/ Barbara A. Hering_________________ 

     BARBARA A HERING   AT 0003384 

     bhering@hhlawpc.com 

 

By /s/Michelle R. Rodemyer_______________ 

     MICHELLE R. RODEMYER   AT0009762 

     mrodemyer@hhlawpc.com 

 

2700 Grand Avenue, Suite 111 

Des Moines, IA  50312 

Telephone:  (515) 244-0111 

Fax:  (515) 244-8935 

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS 

KENNETH REISTROFFER AND CITY OF CENTERVILLE, IOWA 

 

 

ORDER 

 IT IS SO ORDERED this ____________ day of __________________, 2013. 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE 

       SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 
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APPENDIX  A 
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 

CENTRAL DIVISION 

 

 

HEATHER HUEBNER, 

 

 Plaintiff, 

 

vs. 

 

KENNETH REISTROFFER AND CITY OF 

CENTERVILLE, IOWA, 

 

 Defendants. 

 

 

 

 

Case No.: 4:13-cv-23 

 

 

 

 

 

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT CONCERNING INFORMATION COVERED BY 

A PROTECTIVE ORDER ENTERED IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 

 

 

 The undersigned hereby acknowledges that he/she has read the Protective Order in the 

above-captioned litigation and understands its terms, agrees to be bound by each of those terms, 

and agrees to subject himself/herself personally to the jurisdiction of the United States District 

Court for the Southern District of Iowa for the purpose of enforcing its terms.  Specifically, and 

without limitation upon such terms, the undersigned agrees not to use, discuss, disclose, or 

otherwise reveal any “confidential material” (as that terms is used in the Protective Order) or 

information contained therein or derived therefrom made available to him/her other than in 

accordance with the Protective Order. 

 

 

 Dated: __________________________________ 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

        (Signature) 

 

 

____________________________________ 

        (Type or print name of person) 

 

 

Of:_________________________________ 

        (Name of Employer) 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 

CENTRAL DIVISION 

 

HEATHER HUEBNER, 

 

 Plaintiff, 

 

vs. 

 

KENNETH REISTROFFER AND CITY OF 

CENTERVILLE, IOWA, 

 

 Defendants. 

 

 

 

 

Case No.: 4:13-cv-23 

 

 

JOINT MOTION FOR ENTRY OF 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER 

 

 

 

COME NOW, the parties in this action, by and through their undersigned counsel, 

pursuant to Rule 26(c) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and jointly move the Court for 

entry of the proposed Stipulated Protective Order attached to this motion.  In support of this Joint 

Motion, the parties state as follows: 

1. The parties have agreed to a Stipulated Protective Order.  A copy of the Stipulated 

Protective Order is attached as Exhibit A to this Joint Motion. 

2. The interest of justice would be served by the Court entering the Stipulated 

Protective Order and thereby allowing the parties to exchange otherwise confidential records. 

WHEREFORE, the parties jointly pray that this Court enter the attached Stipulated 

Protective Order. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

 

JOHN W. BRUZEK, PLC 

 

By /s/ John W. Bruzek    _________________ 

      John W. Bruzek   AT0009651 

      P.O. Box 3011 

 Iowa City, Iowa 52240 

 (319) 431-0698 

 e-mail: jwbplclaw@gmail.com 

  

 ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF 

 

 

M. VICTORIA COLE LAW FIRM, P.C. 

 

By /s/ M. Victoria Cole   _________________ 

 M. Victoria Cole  AT0001678 

 3200 37th Avenue, S.W. 

 Cedar Rapid, IA 52404 

 Tel.: 319-261-2600 

 Fax.: 319-390-1635 

 e-mail: vcole@mchsi.com 

 

 ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF 

  

 

HOPKINS & HUEBNER, P.C. 

 

 

By /s/ Barbara A. Hering_________________ 

     BARBARA A HERING   AT 0003384 

     bhering@hhlawpc.com 

 

By /s/Michelle R. Rodemyer_______________ 

     MICHELLE R. RODEMYER   AT0009762 

     mrodemyer@hhlawpc.com 

 

2700 Grand Avenue, Suite 111 

Des Moines, IA  50312 

Telephone:  (515) 244-0111 

Fax:  (515) 244-8935 

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS 

KENNETH REISTROFFER AND CITY OF 

CENTERVILLE, IOWA 

Original filed. 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA 

CENTRAL DIVISION 

 

HEATHER HUEBNER, 

 

 Plaintiff, 

 

vs. 

 

KENNETH REISTROFFER AND CITY OF 

CENTERVILLE, IOWA, 

 

 Defendants. 

 

 

 

 

Case No.: 4:13-cv-23 

 

 

APPEARANCE AND JURY DEMAND ON 

BEHALF OF DEFENDANTS KENNETH 

REISTROFFER AND CITY OF 

CENTERVILLE, IOWA 

 

The undersigned hereby appears on behalf of the Defendants, Kenneth Reistroffer and 

City of Centerville, Iowa, in the above-captioned matter.  

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

HOPKINS & HUEBNER, P.C. 

 

 

By/s/Michelle R. Rodemyer_______________ 

MICHELLE R. RODEMYER   AT0009762 

2700 Grand Avenue, Suite 111 

Des Moines, IA  50312 

Telephone:  (515) 244-0111 

Fax:  (515) 244-8935 

mrodemyer@hhlawpc.com 

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS 

KENNETH REISTROFFER AND CITY 

OF CENTERVILLE, IOWA 

 

Original filed. 

 

Copies to: 

 

John W. Bruzek 

Box 3011 

Iowa City, Iowa 52240 

(319) 431-0698 

E-mail: jwbplclaw@gmail.com 

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

The undersigned certifies that the foregoing instrument was served 

upon each of the attorneys of record of all parties to the above-entitled 

cause herein at their respective addresses disclosed on the pleadings 

of record on the 2nd day of May, 2013. 

By  ☐ U.S. Mail ☐ Fax 

 ☐ Hand Delivery ☒ Electronically through CM-ECF

 ☐ Private Carrier ☐ Other:    

Signature/s/ Karen I. Hunter  
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M. Victoria Cole 

3200 37
th

 Avenue SW 

Cedar Rapids, IA 52404 

Tel: (319) 261-2600 

Fax: (319) 390-1635 

 

ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF 

 

 

Barbara A. Hering 

2700 Grand Avenue, Suite 111 

Des Moines, IA  50312 

Telephone:  (515) 244-0111 

Fax:  (515) 244-8935 

BHERING@HHLAWPC.COM 

 

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS 

KENNETH REISTROFFER AND CITY OF 

CENTERVILLE, IOWA 
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